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Executive Summary  
 

This deliverable of “task 2.1 specification of the input required” enumerates the information necessary to collect 

during the SPICE Project and the approach to collect the information. This specification is elaborated together with 

WP3 and WP4, since they will use the results of the collected information for the planned analysis in WP3 and for 

the building of common buyers groups in WP4. WP5 will support WP2 by asking the SPICE Stakeholders to 

provide the required input. 

The deliverable also contains the information form that will be used as an online questionnaire and as interview 

guidelines in order to collect best practice examples. 

Additional interviews will be done with suppliers and public procurement experts. The information that SPICE is 

aiming to collect and the reasons behind this focus are also explained in this deliverable.  
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1. Introduction 
 

The main goal of SPICE is to share experiences on procurement of innovation of transport and mobility solutions 

and to analyse these experiences to formulate recommendations that can be used in the future by public 

procurers in Europe.  

A challenge of SPICE is to collect sufficient experiences that A) provide an added value to others or B) contribute 

to the formulation of the recommendations. Often one learns more from mistakes, problems and bottlenecks than 

from smooth successes. Therefor SPICE collects best practices as well as difficulties encountered. 

The task of WP2 in SPICE is to collect these experiences (i.e. best practices and difficulties encountered). The 

current deliverable D2.1 describes what information is needed and why it is needed and specifies the information 

form that will be used to collect the experiences. 

The current deliverable D.2.1 consists of four chapters. Chapter 1 is the introduction. Chapter 2 describes the 

approach that will be used to collect the required information and how the SPICE partners will work together on 

this. Chapter 3 describes the information that will be collected and which kind of information is needed for the 

later analysis and recommendations. Chapter 4 specifies in detail the information form that will be used for the 

collection of the experiences.  

2. Approach 
 

This chapter focusses on the approach for the information collection.  Four different methods will be used to 

collect the required information: 

1. Desk research 

2. Request for information via an information form 

3. Interviews 

4. Upload of tender documents 

Overview: 

  

Information Form on Best Practice Online and offline Version to collect information on 

best practices. The data will be used for the best 

practice catalogue and for the analyses to be done in 

WP3.  

First collection will start within the SPICE Consortium 

and continue within a wider community throughout the 
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project.  

 Qualitative Partly Structured Expert Interviews The interviews will be done via phone, in person or via 

mail. In order to find out more about the challenges 

public procurers face it is crucial to do interviews with 

them. Especially background information, like 

examples of unsuccessful procurement examples, 

failure or major challenges that could not be solved 

within the existing public procurement framework. To 

discuss these issues and learn more about them 

qualitative expert interviews will be done. These 

interviews will be open and the best option would be to 

do them face to face. Due to limited resources the 

interviews will mainly be telephone interviews and in 

some cases, if no other way can be found, via mail.  

Who will be interviewed will be decided after the first 

cases are collected via the information form and the 

needs are identified within the common buyers groups. 

Depending on which additional information is needed 

interviews will be done.  

Desk Research Collection of published best practice examples of 

public procurement of innovative mobility solution in 

the range of the SPICE Cluster Topics. 

Studies and publication about Public Procurement of 

Innovation. 

Focus Groups In WP4 the Buyers will participate in Focus Groups to 

define common needs and discuss challenges they 

face as ways to overcome them. This collected 

information will also be integrated in the analysis of 

WP3 and the recommendations that will be elaborated 

at the end of the project.   

Upload Possibility Original Tender Documents: If available, the 

participants of the information form have the option to 

share the tender documents with us to support the 

analysis done in SPICE WP3. The can send the 

documents per mail or upload them. SPICE will also 

ask the organisations represented in the SPICE 

consortium, SPICE Stakeholder Group and SPICE 

Buyers Groups to share their tender documents within 

SPICE. 
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2.1. Desk research 

 

Since day 1 of the SPICE project a desk research was done (WP2) in order to find out which information is 

already publically available.  

There are many case studies published that present innovative procurement examples in different mobility fields. 

The aim of SPICE is not to copy them, but to add cases to this list and focus on topics that are underrepresented 

yet. For example there are many publications on procurement of green vehicles1 that can already be used. In 

other fields it is not so easy to find examples, like for instance procured ITS Services. The same is true for 

innovation procurement approaches. For example, a first review of the already published procurements clearly 

showed that most procurers use the open procedure as a standard procurement procedure. This is not 

unexpected.2 

SPICE will analyse the results of the desk research to find out where the blind spots in the existing knowledge 

about public procurement of innovative, sustainable mobility solutions are.  When publishing best practise cases 

SPICE will focus on procedures and approaches that are underrepresented in the existing knowledge sharing 

projects, like the usage of competitive dialogue or legal or technical approaches that are not so commonly used 

when procuring innovations.  

2.1. Requests for information and interviews 

 

WP2 will collect best practices and difficulties encountered from previous projects with public procurement of 

innovative transport solutions, including ways of doing competitive dialogs, utilisation of different innovation 

procurement approaches (such as PPI-approaches), and technical specifications, etc.  

The consortium members will collect this from different countries and for different subjects as they are addressed 

by SPICE: Alternatively Fuelled Vehicles and Infrastructure; Intelligent Transport Systems and Services; Mobility 

Services and Others. An information form will be used for a structured way of collecting the information. 

As a start a first concept version of the information form was developed in M1 and M2 of the project. The next 

step was the first internal test round. The information form was tested by 2 partners of the SPICE consortium. 

They provided examples from their procurements and filled in the form to pre-check it: if the questions are 

understandable; will it collect all the information needed for later steps and whether the format was suitable (open 

questions, multiple-choice questions, etc.). This internal test also was providing information on resources needed 

to complete the form.  

The next step after the submission of D.2.1 is that every partner within the consortium starts to collect best 

practice cases using the information form as an interview guideline. Additionally the interview form will also exist 

in an online version to be filled in by experts addressed via the SPICE Stakeholder Group.  

                                                           
1ea. :  Clean Fleets (2015), clean fleets case studies, URL: http://www.clean-fleets.eu/case-studies/ [17/10/2016]; PRIMES 
Green Public Procurement Case Studies, URL: http://primes-eu.net/use-our-findings/case-studies/ [17/10/2016];  
2  Strand et. al (2011), Public Procurement in Europe, Cost and effectiveness, URL: 
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/publicprocurement/docs/modernising_rules/cost-effectiveness_en.pdf [17/11/2016]; 

http://www.clean-fleets.eu/case-studies/
http://primes-eu.net/use-our-findings/case-studies/
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/publicprocurement/docs/modernising_rules/cost-effectiveness_en.pdf
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After the first examples are collected, WP2 (supported by WP4 and WP3) will analyse whether the information 

collected is fulfilling the needs for their analyses or if additional questions or other interviews are needed. The 

feedback from this internal test was used to finalise version 1.0 of the information form (see chapter 4). 

When needed, e.g. for further clarifications, SPICE will collect additional information by carrying out interviews. 

The interviews will start in WP2, but might continue in WP3 or WP4. The information collected via interviews is 

described in chapter 3.  

Possible reassessments of the information form will continue throughout the SPICE project (leading to new 

versions) in order to ensure that the collected information form a sound basis for the final SPICE 

recommendations.   

Starting with M3 - after finalising the information form test round (after the submission of this deliverable 2.1) all 

SPICE partners will be asked to provide at least 5 examples of best practices based on information form. If no 

best practice examples are available in their region/city the partners are asked to provide information about the 

challenges they face or might face when procuring innovative solutions.  

After this information from the SPICE partners is collected, SPICE will send out the information form (online form) 

to a large group of public procurers (SPICE Stakeholders and others) to collect more examples.  As many people 

often do not have the resources to answer detailed questions there is a risk that the distribution of the information 

form will not provide a sufficient number of responses. To prevent this risk SPICE partners agreed that each 

partner has to dedicate at least one person-month to WP2 to describe the internally collected experiences but 

also to support the public procurers and others to fill in the information form. Thus, if a public procurer does not 

want to fill the information form, but only want to share available documents or to answer via a quick telephone 

interview, the SPICE consortium members will fill in the information form in a view to give each best practice case 

the same format.  

SPICE will also collect experiences from suppliers of innovative transport and mobility solutions, however not until 

after the collection of the information from the large group of public procurers. An adjusted information form will 

be design for that. Most probably, this form will be more or less a subset of the information form for public 

procurers. 

 

2.3. Upload of tender documents 

 

If available the contributors to the information form also have an option to share the tender documents with 

SPICE to support the analysis done in SPICE WP3. The contributors will be asked to send the documents per 

mail or upload them. SPICE will also ask the organisations represented in the SPICE consortium, SPICE 

Stakeholder Group and SPICE Buyers Groups to share their tender documents within SPICE. 

Why are the tender documents collected? 

Tender documents are crucial information for the analyses done in SPICE. Tender documents give the 

opportunity to look into the details of the tender, e.g. identifying the award criteria used to procure the innovation, 

details in evaluation of the bids, the main focus of the procurement and the needs, and additional information not 

given in the information. The tender documents can also be compared to analyse differences. If challenges 

occurred it might be because of formulation within the tender documents.  



 
                                                                   
        

8 
 

3. Information to be collected 
As mentioned SPICE will share best practices and provide recommendations for public procurers in Europe. In 

WP4 SPICE will also stimulate public procurers to work together on (partly) common procurements, e.g. when a 

few procurers want to buy more or less the same solutions. Therefore WP2 needs to collect also information on 

the experiences of the possibilities to work together. Besides the input from public procurers, also the view points 

of the commercial suppliers are important in order to provide good recommendations.  

WP2 therefore collects the following four groups of information: 

1. Best practices from public procurers 

2. Challenges / difficulties encountered 

3. Experiences and possibilities of public procurers to work together 

4. Experiences and viewpoints of suppliers 

Each of them is described in the following paragraphs. Chapter 4 gives a detailed specification of the information 

groups and how they will be collected. 

 

3.1. Best practices 

 

Considering that SPICE aims to share best practices between European public procurers and aims to come to 

recommendations on procurement approaches, information both about the content and about the procurement 

procedures used are needed from the best practices. In short the following information is needed: 

- A short description of what the project aimed to buy or aimed to achieve. 

- An indication of the size of the procurement and of the maturity of the solution (TR-level),  

- A description of the procurement procedure used, including (if any): 

o Pre-tender activities (market research, market consultation, etc.) 

o Selection criteria 

o Contract award criteria and sub-criteria 

o Main requirements to be full filled (especially those related to the procurement) 

o Model-contract used yes/no 

- A description of the learning points (positive and negative) or other information that might be of use for 

others 

Best Practice 

• Collected via Questinnair 

• WP2 in cooperation with WP3 and 
WP4 

Procurement Challenges 

• Interviews 

• Guidelines with open questions 

• WP2, WP3, WP4 

Needs 

• Identified in WP4 

• SPICE Common Buyer's Groups 

Suppliers Point of View 

• Identivied in the Stakeholder Group 

• Additional interviews if needed 

• SPICE Stakeholder Forum?? 
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- Name of the public procurer and the name of a contact person for further information 

- If possible name(s) and contact details of the supplier(s) where we might get additional information 

- … 

This information will mainly be collected via the information form. But after the first analysis is done additional 

interviews will be done with experts to collect information that might still be missing.  

According to the information that will be still needed after the first analyses of the best practice cases different 

interview guidelines will be elaborated to collect information from experts, public procurers, policy makers and 

suppliers.  

This will mainly be information described in point 3.2 – 3.6. 

3.2. Challenges / difficulties encountered 

 

Challenges, difficulties encountered, mistake, etc. provide often the most useful learning points for others, 

especially when they are accompanied by recommendations how to prevent or solve them. The information 

requested is therefore: 

- What challenges did one encounter that hindered the procurement of certain solutions: 

o What was the wanted solution 

o Why was the procurement not possible? 

- What kind of difficulties in the procurement process did one encounter in projects that did run: 

o What kind of project 

o What kind of difficulty/ies 

o What would one recommend 

- What kinds of difficulties / barriers / restrictions are encountered due to national or European laws? Any 

suggestions for possible changes? 

- Name of a contact person for further information (done via telephone interviews, etc.) 

Identifying the challenges that public procurers have faced is crucial for the recommendations that SPICE will 

elaborate in WP3.  

 

3.3. Experiences and possibilities of public procurers to work together 

 

A special topic in SPICE (in WP4) is to stimulate public procurers to work together when they have a (partly) 

common procurement need. In order for WP4 to identify buyers that possibly could work together, the following 

information is needed: 

- Short descriptions of on-going or planned projects that might have some chance for cooperation with 

one or more other procurers 

- An indication of what kind of procurement process one follows or want to follow 

- If possible an indication of these other procurers 

- Name of the public procurer and the name of a contact person for further information 
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3.4. Viewpoints of suppliers 

 

Best practices can be collected from public procurers. But other ideas for improvements can also be collected 

from suppliers. The following information will be requested from suppliers: 

- What are their experiences when submitting solutions and ideas for tenders? 

- Would additional information have been needed to exactly understand the need of the public procurers? 

- What kind of challenges did they encounter? 

- What are their experiences with different public procurement procedures? 

- What are their learnings? 

- How do they decide for participation? 

- Examples of tenders won? 

- Is it a start-up, a large or small company? 

- What information would they like to have from the public procurer’s side? 

To collect this kind of information will give an additional view from the side of suppliers that can also help public 

procurers to learn what to focus on when tendering. To understand the supplier’s side can provide information 

about the kind of criteria and procedures which are fostering their participation. Separating between company 

size and company establishment will show which kind of suppliers are possibly facing different problems with 

different procedures. For example start-ups with innovative solutions may be excluded by criteria’s like the 

number of years the company has been established on the marked, no first buyers yet or simple not enough 

knowledge about public procurement tenders. Identifying this kind of information may help to recommend 

procedures, formulations and criteria’s that are especially “innovation friendly”.  

 

3.5. Open questions 

 

The information forms and the interview guidelines should also include the possibility to provide additional 

information the respondent thinks might be of relevance for SPICE. Such information should be in the form of 

general open questions.  

3.5.1 Policy Information 

Some of the open questions in the information form refer to policy information about the country, city or region. 

SPICE wants to find out if special policy documents or national regulations, like CO2 targets, public procurement 

of innovation action plans, goals of sustainable procurement, roadmaps and similar are fostering the procurement 

of innovation.  

 

3.6. How to use public procurement as an instrument to trigger 

innovations that public authorities and citizens need? 
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Another very imported goal of SPICE is to find out how to use public procurement to foster innovation and collect 

information on additional new approaches for launching and enabling market to develop new services for citizens 

without requiring the public authority to invest directly in the services (i.e. Mobility as a Service). 

Interviews will be done to elaborate this. For example some cities, like the city of Helsinki is opening up their data 

to foster that the market will provide innovative applications and solutions. The Cities main goal might not be to 

build all this solutions by itself. SPICE will also look a bit into these ideas. How can public authorities find the best 

policy mix to meet its service goals? In some cases this might also be possible without procuring the solution.  
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4. Information form 
This chapter specifies the information form that will be used to collect the best practice cases and challenges. 

Introduction 

Thank you for your willingness to share and exchange your experience on your procurement activities, with a 

specific focus on public procurement of innovative sustainable transport and mobility solutions in urban areas, 

with other public authorities across Europe.  

About the Project SPICE 

The project SPICE, which is a Coordination and Support Action funded by the European Commission’s 

Directorate-General for Mobility and Transport (DG MOVE), has the aim to support public procurers of innovative 

mobility solutions (like intelligent transport systems) in Europe.  

The ever increasing demand for implementation of sustainable and innovative transportation solution in order to 

reach the cities service goals, dictates the need for more advance methods of procurement to address key 

parameters such as innovation, scalability, interoperability etc. Therefore, there is a strong need to establish a 

domain for understanding the public buyers’ needs and the market perspectives in this matter. SPICE will give an 

invaluable chance to public authorities to share their experiences of procurement of innovative sustainable 

transportation solutions and to learn from each other.  

Over a 24 month timeframe, this project will enable public procurers to form a stakeholder group. This project will 

gather the best practices in procurement of innovative sustainable transport and mobility solutions in three 

hierarchical levels; national, regional and city levels by engaging with leading European cities and regions, 

industry and academic institutions to facilitate sharing of their best practices and demonstration of using public 

procurements for innovative solutions using various instruments: PCP, public-private-innovation partnerships, 

market consultation, award criteria, etc. It will carry out in-depth analyses on current practices, to look into various 

possibilities to enable fast adoption of new technologies, and to define strategies of procurement approaches and 

award criteria stimulating innovation, thus forming a set of recommendations.  

This will assist public authorities to use this collection of best practices in a more constructive and simple manner 

and implement the recommendations through capacity building and knowledge transfer activities. Finally, using 

the project as platform, SPICE will form a number of buyers groups to work on strategies on how to plan joint, 

cross-border, procurement actions for their sustainable transportation projects, and – if possible – to commence 

planning of such actions during the timeframe of the SPICE project. 

About this information form 

This information form is the first step to collect best practice cases of public procurement of innovative 

sustainable transport and mobility solutions in urban areas. You will also have the opportunity to upload your 

tender documents and other information that you want to share with SPICE. The data will be used to elaborate a 

best practice catalogue that will be set up to support procurers to find solutions to their needs and to learn from 

each other’s experience.  

The cases will also be used as one source of the in deep analysis in WP3 that will lead to recommendations at 

the end of the project. 

Additionally, the cases collected will become visible on European level. For any further questions about this 

questionnaire please contact: Bianca.Kapl@austriatech.at  

mailto:Bianca.Kapl@austriatech.at
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For any questions regarding the SPICE project and the possibilities of being part of the SPICE Buyers and/or 

SPICE Stakeholder group please contact the project coordinator: 

Bahar Namaki Araghi EH5V@tmf.kk.dk 

  

mailto:EH5V@tmf.kk.dk
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1. Contact Information 

 

1.1 Your name and contact details 

Example: Name, Mail, telephone. SPICE might contact you for additional clarifications. 

                

 

1.2 Your organisation 

Example: Name Address 

                

 

 

1.3 Your department 
 

 

 

1.4 Your function within the organisation 

 

Example: Working in the procurement department etc. 

 

 

1.5 Please categorise your organisation (more than one answer is possible) 

1. Public Authority 

2. Central Purchasing Body 

3. Public Service Provider 

4. Procurement Agency 

5. Mobility Operator (Road, Rail etc.) (Public Body, State Owned) 

6. City  

7. Region Administration 

8. Research Body 

9. Supplier or any other private organisation not operating under public procurement law: 

if yes, note that this questionnaire is just for public procurers, if you are interested in SPICE and 

contact the SPICE Stakeholder Forum please follow LINK www.spice-project.eu  

10. Other ________________________ 

 

  

http://www.spice-project.eu/
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2. Content: What was tendered? 

 

2.1 Title 

 
Example: Title of the Tender 
 

 

2.2 Brief description of what was requested 

 
Example: Brief description of the content: why, what, how, when, etc. 
 

 

2.3 Indication of the total value (budget) excluding VAT: 

 
Example: 100 000 € 
 

 

2.4 Brief description of the achieved results of the project 

 
Example: Results achieved differences with what was requested. 
 

 

2.5 Was your solution already available on the market and ready to buy YES/NO 
 
If NO Please explain which kind of adoptions or development was still needed? 

 
 
 
Example: describe 
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2.6 Which TRL3 do you assume the procured solution had before and after the project? 

 

Example: This question is to find out if any adaption of the solution, or even R&D had to be done. If this is not the case you can also have 

the same TRL (9) before and after the procurement process. 

Before: DROP DOWN MENU with TRL1-TRL9 

After: DROP DOWN MENU with TRL1-TRL9 

 

 

2.7 Who won the tender? 

 
Example: Please provide organisation and contact name, such that SPICE could contact them if needed for additional information 
 

 

2.8 Any other information about the content that might be relevant for other procurers in Europe 

 
Example: ….. 
 

 

  

                                                           
3 Technology readiness levels (TRL) –  
TRL 1 – basic principles observed 
TRL 2 – technology concept formulated 
TRL 3 – experimental proof of concept 
TRL 4 – technology validated in lab 
TRL 5 – technology  validated  in  relevant  environment  (industrially  relevant environment in the case of key enabling 
technologies) 
TRL  6  – technology  demonstrated  in  relevant  environment  (industrially  relevant environment in the case of key enabling 
technologies) 
TRL 7  – system prototype demonstration in operational environment 
TRL 8  – system complete and qualified 
TRL 9  – actual   system   proven   in   operational   environment   (competitive  manufacturing in the case of key enabling 
technologies; or in space) 
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3. The Tender and the Procurement Process? 

  

3.1 General Information 

 

3.1.1 Please describe your Procurement Process in short 
 

Example: first steps done, more than one phase or not. Please also describe process for market dialogue prior to 

the tender if any. 

 

 

 

 

3.1.2 Please describe any major difficulty encountered in the procurement process that could be relevant to 
others 

 

Example: legal / company restrictions,  

 

 

 

 

3.1.3 Please indicate the type of contract: 

 

Works Contract 

Supplies Contract 

Service Contract  

If you Service Contract please indicate the period the contract indicated: 

   </=3 years 

  > 3-5 years 

   </= 5 years 

 

 

3.1.4 Please indicate the reasons for the timeframe of your contract (long-term/short-term) 

 
Example: Reasons 
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3.1.5 Additional Information you want to give about the type of contract: 

 

Example information we are looking for: was it clear what type of contract fits? Does your contract consist of 

more than one main object (example infrastructure works, software and a service etc. procuring a package; did 

your procurement project consist of more than one contract (one tender for the service, one for supplies etc.) 

 

 

3.1.6 Please indicate under which Directive the procurement was conducted: 

 

[ ] Directive 2014/24/EU on public procurement (the new procurement directive) 

[ ] Directive 2014/25/EU on entities operating in the water, transport and postal services (the new utilities 

directive) 

[ ] Directive 2004/18/EC (the old procurement directive) 

[ ] Directive 2004/17/EC (the old utilities directive) 
 
[ ] The procurement action fell outside the scope of the directives  
 

 

 

3.1.7a Please enter the CPV-Code of the Tender 

 
Example: 90700000  
Box with just numbers possible  
 
 

 

3.1.7b Please indicate contract notice number(s) in the TED (Tenders Electronic Daily) 

 
Example: 9 e.g. 2016/S 133-239453” 
Box with just numbers possible  
 
Notices in TED (Tenders Electronic Daily) often gives valuable information on the tender procedure, such as scope, 
procedure, criteria, time schedules etc. If possible, please provide numbers of all notices from the tender, including any Prior 
Information Notices.      
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3.2 The Market and Market Consultation  

 

3.2.1 Did you foster the market to come up with the solution you needed? Did you start any kind of buyers driven 
innovation process to influence the market to adjust a solution to your needs or invent something new?  
 
Please describe if you used a procedure in your procurement to move the market and how you proceeded? 

 

 

 

 

Example: describe how you moved the market (pre-tender notice, R&D elements during or prior the 

procurement, use of procedures with negotiation or dialogue, any testing or piloting phase proving viability? 

 

 

 

 
 

 

3.2.2 Did you perform a market consultation YES/NO 
 
If YES Please describe the purpose of the market consultation and how you did this consultation 
 
IF YES Did the market consultation aim at maturing the suppliers/solution for the forthcoming tender?   
 
If YES Please explain to which extend you designed your tender specifications before the market consultation; Did you carry 
out market consultation prior to the design of the tender specification or did you use market consultation for quality 
assurance on the tender specifications?  

 

 

Example: describe 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2.3 How did the market consultation affect your final tender specifications? 
Example: describe how input from the potential suppliers, demonstrations, tests, reviews etc. affected the final 

tender specifications and aimed the tender towards a desired solution?  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
                                                                   
        

20 
 

3.2.4 Did you perform any other activities to foster the market to come up with the innovative solutions you need? 

 

 

 

 

Example: describe how you moved the market (negotiation, pre-tender notice, R&D elements during or prior the 

procurement, any testing or piloting phase? 

 

 

 

 

 

3.3 The Procedure  

 

3.3.1 Please indicate the type of procurement procedure you used (more than one possible) 

 

 

Open Procedure  

Restricted Procedure 

 

Competitive procedure with negotiation  

Competitive dialogue  

Innovation Partnership  

Negotiated procedure without prior publication  

Design contest  

Other: ___     

 please describe the name and type of the procedure or add a link where more information  can be 

found_______________ 

 

 

 

 

3.3.2 Why did you decide for this procedure you selected in question 3.3.1 ? 

 

Example: Did the acquisition contain elements of adaptions or new design that could not be precisely described 

in the tender documentation? Was is unclear what the market could offer and therefore dialogue/negotiation was 

needed?   
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3.3.3 According to your experience what have been/are the Pros and Cons of this procedure (you selected in 
3.3.1) concerning the specific procurement project?   

 

Example: Describe whether the chosen procedure appeared to qualify the final tender better than e.g. open 

procedure or whether the chosen procedure appeared too complex or time consuming seen in light of the value 

of the acquisition?   

 

 

 

 

 

3.3.4 Did you make a call for competition by means of a prior information notice? 

YES/NO  
 
If YES Which advantages did you seek to obtain?  
Example: Did you use the prior information notice to make an early announcement of the forthcoming tender or was the prior 
information notice used for shortening the quotation deadline?  

 

3.4 The Approach 

 

3.4.1 Within your Procedure did you also use other kinds of approaches to trigger innovative solutions as results 

of the tender? 

Used YES/NO Approach General Description IF YES please 
indicate how you 
integrated this 
approach in your 
tender: 

 

    YES                 NO 
 

Preliminary market 
consultation 

Early announcement of intentions to procure or 
to deploy innovative solutions 
 
Between announcement and tender: preliminary 
market consultation (art. 40) – have the industry 
solutions reached the required readiness 
(technology, tests, price?) 
 
Crucial for market and technology knowledge 
 
The suppliers get the opportunity to modify or 
customise their existing solutions or even 
develop entirely new solutions 
 
Buyer driven innovation without procurement of 
R&D  
 
Option: Guarantee of minimum procurement 
volume to increase interest for participating in 
the later procurement process?  

 

 

    YES                 NO 
 

Early Announcement 

 

    YES                 NO 
 

Forward Commitment 
Procedure 

 

    YES                 NO 

Functional 
Requirements 
 

Define technical requirements with the aim of 
allowing innovation, efficiency improvement, and 
new ways of thinking – “open specifications” 
 
Suitable for procurement actions following PCP’s 
or other Public-Private-Innovation projects (art. 
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    YES                 NO 
 

Open Specifications 14/16 f) 
 
Helps to prevent supplier lock-out / supplier lock-
in, and disqualifying competitive advantages 

 

    YES                 NO 
 
 

Variants (alternative 
Solutions) 

Allows the procuring authority to evaluate both 
the  technical specified solutions but also other 
“already on the market solutions” 
 
In principal a combined tender with, and without, 
open (technical) specifications 
 
May visualise differences in price, technology, 
utilisation etc. 

 

 

    YES                 NO 
 

Total Cost of Ownership 
(TCO) (art. 68) 

An evaluation-technical price comprising 
different aspects of the costs over the life cycle of 
a product, solution etc. 
 
Focus on data (from the suppliers) and 
transparent, objectively verifiable and non-
discriminatory methods of calculating life-cycle 
costs 
 
May force suppliers to reduce costs of 
manufacturing and/or ownership 
Demands of TCO or LCC reduction may lead to 
new innovative solutions 

 

 

    YES                 NO 
 

Life-cycle costing (LCC) 
(art. 68) 
 

 

    YES                 NO 
 

Remuneration for 
participation and 
shortlisting 
 

Increases the incentives for participating and 
developing/modifying/adapting solutions  
 
Competitive dialog , Innovation partnership (and 
design contest) 
 
The same mechanisms as in PCP – competitive 
development  but combined with a public 
procurement contract 
 
Enhance possibilities for SME’s to participate 
Always consider the risk of illegal state aid! 

 

 

    YES                 NO 
 
 

Using ‘innovative 
characteristics’ as 
evaluation criteria (art. 67 
(2) (a)) 
 

Art. 67 (2) (a): “Such criteria may comprise for 
instance: (a)...innovative characteristics...” 
 
Awarding suppliers for offering new solutions and 
may open competition for SME’s 
 
Forcing potential suppliers to take steps towards 
product development 

 

 
Other 

 

Please name the approach 

 
 

 
Please describe here 

how you used it in your 

tender 

 

 
Other 

  
 

Please name the approach 

 

 

 

 

 
Please describe here 

how you used it in your 

tender 

 

 
Other 

  
 

Please name the approach 

 

 

 

 

 
Please describe here 

how you used it in your 

tender 
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3.5 Contract Evaluation and Award Criteria: 

 

3.5.1 Art. 67 CD says: "contracting authorities shall base the award of public contracts on the most economically 

advantageous tender" 

Please indicate the option (a/b/c) that you used in your tender! 

Most Economically Advantageous Tender (MEAT) becomes the sole award criterion to be assessed on the basis 

of 

 

 

     a) lowest price, or 

      b) cost, using a cost-effectiveness approach such as life-cycle costing, or   

   c) the best price-quality ratio(BPQR) to be assessed on the basis of award criteria linked to the subject-
matter of the contract. 
 

 

Questions that will ask to persons that selected option a) was picked 

3.5.2 Please indicate why you used lowest price as your award criteria? 

 

Example: always used; company rule etc. 

 

  

Questions that will ask to persons that selected if option b) was picked 

3.5.3 Please indicate why you used cost-effectiveness approach as your award criteria and describe how you did 
calculate and you calculation model: 
 

Example: why you used LCC (Life Circle Costing) how the LCC have been calculated OR other options like 

total costs of ownership (TCO) 

 

  

Questions that will ask to persons that selected if option c) was picked (Questions 3.5.4.1- 3.5.4.4) 

3.5.4.1 Please indicate why you used the best price-quality ratio to be assessed on the basis of award criteria: 

 

Example: can integrate innovation criteria, did fit to the topic because…etc.  
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3.5.4.2 Please describe the sub-evaluation criteria used. In the first column name the 
criteria in the second chose between the option of awarding point or percentage and enter 
the weighting.  
 
Explanation as you used the best price-quality ratio it is very interesting for SPICE which sub-criteria 
you used to measure quality/innovation etc. 

Sub-Criteria Used Points or Percentage  Weighting 
 
 
Example: Price 

 

    Points           % 
 

 
 
Example:50% of the award criteria 

  

    Points           % 
 

 

  

    Points          % 
 

 

  

    Points           % 

 

   

    Points           % 
 

 

  

    Points           % 
 
 

 

  

    Points           % 
 

 

  

    Points           % 
 

 

 

3.5.4.3 Was there a special reason why you used one or more of the above-mentioned sub-criteria. 
 

Example: used before in projects, followed procurement guidelines of your organisation or city/region, tested  

them; this point is about background information about why you have chosen the criteria (like price, 

sustainability etc.) and the wheighting. 
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3.5.4.4 Did any of the sub-criteria to a special extent favour innovative solutions?  
 

Example: the definition of this sub-criterion (e.g. “innovative characteristics”, “alternative solutions offered” 

etc.) has proven effective in awarding innovation in offered solutions, or putting weight on CO2-emmision 

forced the suppliers to offer a green solution.  

 

 

 

3.6 Selection Criteria 

 

3.6.1 Did you include any minimum performance criteria in the contract? Any conditions when they are not 

reached? 
 

Example: Penalties etc. 

 

 

3.6.2 Please indicate details about selection criteria (entry criteria) if the selection criteria was somehow aimed at 
innovative suppliers:  
 

Example: Did you lower the requirements for revenue or experience to open up for small companies (SME’s) to compete for 
the contract?  
 

 

 

 

3.7 Additional Questions: 

 

3.7.1 Did the offered solutions meet your expectations? Please explain 
 

Example: Expectations have been fulfilled, OR some difficulties occurred. Were there enough bidders, did they 

fulfil your expectations, have there been any kind of problems identified, what have been the reasons for this 

problems (Tender formulation, legal difficulties, misunderstanding of the needs etc.). Criteria have worked 

well …. 

 

 

 

 

3.7.2 Are you willing to share the tender documents with the SPICE project? 

 

If yes, please forward them per email to Bianca.Kapl@austriatech.at OR upload them here: 

 

UPLOADING FIELD 

 

mailto:Bianca.Kapl@austriatech.at
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3.7.3 Did you procure jointly with other Organisations? And if yes was it procurement with other organisations 
within your country (national level) OR with organisations of other countries (transnational level) 

 No 

 NATIONAL 

 TRANSNATION 

 National via the national procurement agency  

 

3.7.3.1 If you performed a JOINT PROCUREMENT please describe any positive or negative experiences  related 

to the joint procurement aspect 

Examples of information we are looking for: this can be all kind of things like a lower price achieved, learnings, 

general experiences, legal difficulties, different technical standards or time resources, etc. all kind of 

experiences that you think are related to the fact you procured jointly and not alone.  

 

 

 

 

4. Procurement Policy and Framework Conditions 

 

4.1 Do model tender documents exist for the solution you procured (e.g. handbooks, model forms, model 
contracts, etc.)? YES/NO  
 
If YES, is the use of those forms etc. mandatory, and/or do they include any criteria that foster innovative 
solutions? If available please also post a link of the documents in the box below or upload the documents: 
 
Example: Yes do exist not mandatory no innovation criteria…  etc. 
 
 

Upload you Documents HERE 
 

 

4.2 Are there any policy documents/legal documents or goals (in your organisation or in your country) in place 
that encourage or make it inevitable and/or mandatory to use criteria (legal or technical) favouring innovative 
solutions? If YES please explain which and name the documents 

 

Example: Action Plans, Legal documents that aim at a minimum percentage of innovative Procurement, C02 

reduction goals, company procurement guidelines that foresee an amount of innovative criteria or specify the 

criteria to be used and similar 
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4.3 If your city/organisation is currently engaged in or planning a major reform of its procurement system, please 
briefly state the scope and objectives of this reform.  
 

Example: Optional Question 

 

 

 

4.4 In your country, do certain territorial entities or institutions establish lists of eligible contractors (sometimes 
called “white-lists”)? If yes, please explain the criteria for a company to be included in or excluded from this list, 
and what use is made of such lists. 
 

Example: Optional Question 

 

 

 

4.5 Any other information concerning your procurement you want to share with us? 
 Example: Learnings that could help others 
 

 

 

 

 

6. Results of the Request for Information 

 

6.1 Do you want to receive the SPICE newsletter YES/NO  

If one YES please enter your mail address here:_____________ 

6.2 Do you agree that SPICE is publishing your best practice procurement example for Webinars/the best 

practice catalogue, within in newsletters and other SPICE related channels? 

YES/NO/YES if you inform me per mail before  

If “YES if you inform me per mail before” please enter your mail address here:_____________  

 

7. Final Thanks and Words 

 

Thank you very much for your cooperation! 

If you want more information about the SPICE Project please visit www.spice-project.eu 

If you have any questions concerning this information form contact Bianca.Kapl@austriatech.at 

 

http://www.spice-project.eu/
mailto:Bianca.Kapl@austriatech.at

